
Mark Saccoccio  
Town Clerk  

  01525 631920 
      info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 

 

 
This will be a remote meeting held via Microsoft Teams in accordance with The Local Authorities 
and Crime Panels (Coronavirus)(Flexibility of Meetings)(England and Wales) Regulations 2020 

12 February 2021 
 
To:  Members of the Market Sub Committee (Councillors G Perham, D Bowater, 
K Cursons, T Morris, R Berry, M Freeman, R Goodchild, P Snelling and F Kharawala) 
(Copies to all Town Councillors for information) 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of Market Sub Committee to be held 
on Thursday, 25 February 2021 commencing at 10.30 am. This will be a remote 
meeting held via Microsoft Teams in accordance with The 
Local Authorities and Crime Panels 
(Coronavirus)(Flexibility of Meetings)(England and Wales) 
Regulations 2020.  
 
https://tinyurl.com/y5cb5jd3 or by tel: +44 20 3795 5672 (Conf ID: 748 449 855#) 
 

 
M Saccoccio  
Town Clerk 

AGENDA 
 
1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 

 Schedule 12 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires a record be kept of the 
Members present and that this record form part of the minutes of the meeting. 
Members who cannot attend a meeting should tender apologies to the Town 
Clerk. 
 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 

 (i) Under the Localism Act 2011 (sections 26-37 and Schedule 4) and in 
accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, Members are required to 
declare any interests which are not currently entered in the Member’s 
Register of Interests or if he/she has not notified the Monitoring Officer of it.  

 
(ii) Should any Member have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in an item on 

the agenda, the Member may not participate in consideration of that item 
unless a Dispensation has first been requested (in writing) and granted by 
the Council (see Dispensation Procedure). 

 

3.   QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC (3 MINUTES PER PERSON; MAXIMUM 15 

THIS MEETING MAY 
BE RECORDED * 

Public Document Pack

mailto:info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
http://www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk/
https://tinyurl.com/y5cb5jd3


MARKET SUB COMMITTEE Thursday, 25 February 2021 
 

 

 

MINUTES)  

 

 To receive questions and statements from members of the public in respect of 
any item of business included in the agenda, as provided for in Standing Order 
No.s 3(f) and 3(g). 
 

4.   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 6) 

 

 (a)  To receive and approve as a correct record the minutes of the Market Sub-

Committee meeting held on 5 November 2020 (attached) in accordance 

with Standing Order 12.  

(b)  To receive information updates on matters arising from the previous 

meeting (if appropriate). 

 

5.   MARKET GENERAL UPDATE (Pages 7 - 18) 

 

 (a) To receive a general update on market activity and to consider the 
recommendations contained therein (attached). 

(b) To receive a verbal presentation on recommendations as set out below 
from the Grounds and Environmental Services Committee, Ref: 97/GE, 
in relation to the Council’s waste management contract:  

 
RECOMMENDED to the Cultural and Economic Services Committee: 
 
(i) to receive specific information on waste collected from the market 

and to look at ways in which to promote these figures. 
(ii) to look at ways to maximise the opportunities for the market to embed 

and promote recycling at the market. 
 

6.   WINTER GRITTING (Pages 19 - 20) 

 

 To receive and consider a Motion proposed by Councillor V Harvey in respect 
of winter gritting (attached).  
 

7.   BUDGET REPORT (Pages 21 - 24) 

 

 To receive a report on the market budgets and to consider the 
recommendations contained therein (attached). 
 

8.   MARKET RENTS (Pages 25 - 26) 

 

 To receive a report on the market rents and to consider the recommendations 
contained therein (attached). 
 

* Phones and other equipment may be used to film, audio record, tweet or blog from this meeting by an individual Council member, 
officer or member of the public.  No part of the meeting room is exempt from public filming unless the meeting resolves to go into 
exempt session.  The use of images or recordings arising from this is not within the Council’s control. 



 

Page 15 

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL 
 

MARKETS SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

THURSDAY 5 NOVEMBER 2020 AT 1030 HOURS 
 

Present:  Councillors  G Perham  
  D Bowater 
  R Berry 
  P Snelling 
             R Goodchild 
             K Cursons 
             F Kharawala 
            J M Freeman 
  

                      Also in attendance:       M Saccoccio, Town Clerk 
  V Cannon (Head of Cultural and Economic  
  Services) 
  S Sandiford (Head of Democratic Services)  
  A Harrison (Market Manager) 
  M Jahn (Committee Officer) 
  Cllr V Harvey 
   
            Members of the Public: 0 

  
35/MK  APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR  
 

  It was proposed and seconded that Councillor G Perham be appointed Chair of 
the Markets Sub-Committee for the municipal year 2020-2021.  There were no 
further nominations.  On being put to the vote, the motion was carried. 

 
RESOLVED to appoint Councillor G Perham Chair of the Markets Sub-
Committee for the municipal year 2020-2021.  

 
 Councillor Perham took the Chair.  
 

36/MK   APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR  
  

It was proposed and seconded that Councillor F Kharawala be appointed Vice 
Chair of the Markets Sub-Committee for the municipal year 2020-2021.  There 
were no further nominations.  On being put to the vote, the motion was carried. 

 
RESOLVED to appoint Councillor Kharawala Vice Chair of the Markets 
Sub-Committee for the municipal year 2020-2021.  

 
 37/MK   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
 Apologies for absence had been received from Councillor T Morris. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Market Sub-Committee 5 NOVEMBER 2020   
                                                                                                                                                                 
 

Page 16 

 

  38/MK DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 
 
Members were asked to declare any interests, including the nature of those 
interests, which they had in any of the items under consideration at this meeting.  
No declarations were made.  
 

 39/MK QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 
  There were no questions from the public. 

   
 40/MK MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  

 
The Sub-Committee received the draft minutes of the previous meeting, held on 
27 February 2020 for consideration.  
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Markets Sub-Committee meeting held 
on 27 February 2020 be approved as a correct record, to be signed at a 
later date when safe to do so.  
 

  41/MK CASHLESS PAYMENTS 
 
 The Sub-Committee received and considered a report regarding Cashless 

Payments for market rents. Members had previously considered this option and 
concluded its reasons for moving to cashless rent payments with the Covid-19 
pandemic further supporting the need to change the operational practice.  World 
Pay offered competitive contractual rates for using their cashless systems which 
would incur a service charge and it was proposed to utilise current year budget 
savings to address the anticipated 2020/21 budget shortfall and then to create a 
new budget line within the market budget for financial year 2021/22. 

 
 Members agreed that cashless payments would be safer for all concerned, 

traders and officers alike.  Also many people do not carry cash and the 
opportunity for a card purchase could result in more purchases by shoppers.  A 
full consultation had taken place with traders and only one comment was 
received back from a trader.  A newsletter would be circulated to all traders once 
cashless payments began. 

 
 RECOMMENDED to the Policy and Finance Committee: 
 

(a) to introduce cashless payments for on-the-day market rent collection 
(b) to enter a contract with WorldPay to facilitate the collection of cashless 

payments for market rents. 
(c) to vire funds across from the Central Bank Charges budget line 4381/12, 

into the Market Cost Centre creating a new budget line to cover the 
service charges associated with the contactless payments for the 
remainder of 2020/21, in order that accurate costs for the running of the 
market can be established. 

(d) that the new budget line is taken forward within the Market cost centre 
for 2021/22, to cover future service charges associated with the 
cashless payment system. 

Page 2



Market Sub-Committee 5 NOVEMBER 2020   
                                                                                                                                                                 
 

Page 17 

 
   42/MK    MARKET GENERAL UPDATE  

 
The Sub-Committee received and considered an update report on market activity 
including market delivery from April to September 2020, trader recruitment, social 
media platforms, promotion and future visiting markets.  
 
Due to COVID-19 the market had to be cancelled from lockdown at the end of 
March until May when a limited ‘essentials’ market was held in Hockliffe Street 
Car Park.  The market was able to return to the High Street on the 20th June once 
the TTRO was in place and the High Street pedestrianised.  The layout of the 
market had been reconfigured to follow the 2m distancing rules and become 
COVID secure.  All regular traders had returned to the market by the end of July 
which enabled officers to allocate a small number of casual trader pitches.  
Feedback from the public had been mainly positive regarding the 
pedestrianisation enabling the market to spread over the whole High Street.  Extra 
markets were held once a month on a Thursday to offer the speciality, casual and 
start up traders to attend and gain access to a market. 
 
Visiting Markets, which operate independently from the Council, were able to 
reschedule their attendance after lockdown eased.  The  Street Food Heroes 
returned on two Sundays 9th August and 13th September and were very well 
received by many customers.  The Vegan Market attended on 20th September 
with 39 traders taking part and have re booked to return for two dates in May and 
September 2021.  The French Market originally booked for April 2020 were able 
to return on 2nd October with a limited number of traders as only English based 
French traders were able to attend due to restrictions. 
 
A question was raised regarding why the number of stalls set up for the Vegan 
market seemed more than the Tuesday and Saturday markets.  The pitch size of 
the Vegan stalls were smaller than the normal market. On reflection of the day, 
discussions had taken place to advise the food stalls be spread out to reduce 
queueing and crowding in one area. Also perhaps the advertising for these 
speciality events could be amended so they are referred to as a Vegan Fayre or 
Event so the public would not immediately associate them with the Town Council 
market event. Committee were informed that these independent operators’ trade 
names included the word ‘market’ to promote themselves. Officers will consider 
how best to assist the promotion and create separation between the markets and 
the Council. 

 
A suggestion was made to look into the format of the market if the 
pedestrianisation was made permanent and enabled more solid  structures to be 
installed in the High Street which could be used in all weather conditions and by 
other businesses.  Although this could be a good idea it would restrict other uses 
of the High Street if the stalls were a permanent fixture, but consideration could 
be given to ideas in the future. 
 
The Sub Committee also agreed that on days when the inclement weather policy 
was put into operation notices should be put at the top and bottom of the High 
Street advising there may be a reduced market because of the weather.  
 

Page 3



Market Sub-Committee 5 NOVEMBER 2020   
                                                                                                                                                                 
 

Page 18 

Thanks were given to the Officers for their hard work and continuing to make the 
market thrive. 
 

         RESOLVED to note the report. 
 
 43/MK   BUDGET REPORT  

 
The Sub-Committee received and considered the budget report. This was by no 
means a typical year to make year on year income comparisons due to COVID 
19 lockdown and restrictions imposed but the situation was being monitored and 
the traders were grateful for the support given by Leighton-Linslade Town Council. 
 
With the start of another four-week lockdown it was suggested that an extension 
be made to the free rent period to the end of December.  Members agreed a 
recommendation should be made to the Policy and Finance Committee to enable 
a quicker decision. 
 
RECOMMENDED to Policy and Finance Committee to waive the payment of 
market pitch fees by permanent market traders for a further month with 
collection re-commencing on Saturday 2 January 2021. 

 
RESOLVED to note the report. 
 

 44/MK   MARKET 12 MONTH REVIEW  
 

 The Sub-Committee received and considered a detailed 12-month review report 
showing the unique circumstances the market had faced this year with the 
COVID-19 restrictions in place.  This was the third review since the market 
relaunched in late September 2017. 

 
 The market layout had to be reconfigured to adhere to restrictions and the closure 

of the High Street to traffic enabled the stalls to be spread out and use the 
highway. Feedback had been generally positive from the public and the retail 
premises in the High Street.   Members discussed the TTRO and the removal of 
the buses from the High Street permanently or only on market days. Upgrades to 
the electric supply had halted for the time being but would be considered in the 
future in consultation with Central Bedfordshire Council. 

 
 It was agreed opening times should be explored to reflect how the majority of 

customers and traders use the market, and the current layout would continue until 
the end of the TTRO.  It was suggested as the bus stops were now in West Street, 
some banners or a noticeboard be installed to welcome people to Leighton 
Buzzard and direct shoppers to the High Street and the market. 

 
 Thanks were given for a comprehensive report and for all the hard work the 

officers had put in to enable the market to continue and thrive in the current 
situation. 

 
 RESOLVED 
 

(a) to advise Full Council that this Committee seeks to continue using the 

Page 4



Market Sub-Committee 5 NOVEMBER 2020   
                                                                                                                                                                 
 

Page 19 

road space for future market delivery beyond the period of the 
experimental Temporary Traffic Road Order and the permanent removal 
of buses on market days. 

(b) to consider undertaking a review of market opening hours. 
 
  

The meeting closed at 1204 hours.  

 

 

I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE RECORD 
OF THE MEETING HELD ON 5 NOVEMBER 2020. 

 

 

 

Chair 25 FEBRUARY 2020 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



 

 

Market Sub Committee                      

Date:          25 February 2021 

Title:         Market General Update. 

Purpose of the Report:                       To provide an update on market activity. 

Contact Officer/s:                            Adrian Harrison, Market Manager 

Corporate Objective/s LLTC Five Year Plan – To continue to support a vibrant town through 
partnership working & initiatives including management of the street 
market, support businesses, town & community promotions & town 
centre enhancements. 

Implications:   

Financial Yes Utilising annual budget 

Human Resources   

Operational/Service 
delivery 

Yes Market Delivery & Activity Plans – Updates  
 

Procedural/Legal   

Risk/Health and Safety   

 

1. RECOMMENDATION 
 
Should members be minded the recommendation is: 
 

1.1 To note the report. 
 

 
2. DELIVERY PLAN UPDATES FOR QUARTER 3, October - December 2020/21  

 
2.1    The table below provides an update on Themed and Speciality Markets. 

Date Themed Markets 2020/2021 Comments 

11th April Easter Egg Hunt Market Closed 

TBC Easter Ride Out 
Collaboration with LB Scooter Club 

Market Closed 

16th - 30th May International Love your local Market fortnight, 
#LYLM 

Food Only Market Open 
Social media 

acknowledgement 

4th July Independents’ Day 
Collaboration with LB First 

Delivered – via social 
media platform 

4th August National Children’s Play Day Not delivered 

27th October Children’s Halloween Letter Hunt Not delivered 

5th December   Small Business Saturday Delivered 

 24th December Christmas Eve Market Delivered 

Date Visiting Markets 2020/2021  

Dates cancelled during 
lockdown, revised 

Street Food Heroes 
(usually attend on a Friday eve – now 
attending on a Sunday) 

9th Aug, Delivered 
13th Sep, Delivered 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



   

 

            
2.2 The table below presents the pitch usage figures for Qu.3. The market returned 

to High Street on 20th June. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

1   Market held in Hockliffe Street Car Park 
2   64 pitches used when in Hockliffe Street Car Park 
3   2nd Lockdown from 4th Nov – 2nd Dec 
 
Note: Thursday eXtra Market started in July but was postponed in Nov due to 
2nd Lockdown. October’s Craft market closed due to inclement weather. 
November’s Craft Market closed due to 2nd Lockdown. December’s Craft market 
fell on Boxing Day. 

 
2.3 Market trader recruitment updates. 
 

a) The table below presents the trader joined & left figures for Qu.3: 
 

Trader type 

Qu. 1 
Joined 

Qu.1 
Left 

Qu.2 
Joined 

Qu.2 
Left 

Qu.3 
Joined 

Qu.3 
Left 

Permanent - - 31 32 - - 

Casual - - 11 - 8 - 

 are Farmers - - - - - - 

Craft - - - - - - 

Charities, Comm Groups - - - - - - 

Start Up - - - - - - 

 

restart date   9th Aug, 
13 Sep. 

Sun 20th September 
(revised date) 

Vegan Market Delivered 

Fri 2nd October (revised 
date) 

France at Home Market Delivered 

Held 3rd Thurs of every 
month 

Thursday eXtra Market     

July, August, 
September 

Casual, Farmers, Crafters Delivered x 3 

October, November, 
December 

Casual, Farmers, Crafters November closed. 
December 17th 

January, February, 
March 

Casual, Farmers, Crafters Farmers attend Charter 
market as essential food 

suppliers during 
lockdown. Craft traders 

are not classified as 
essential. 

Qu. 1 
Pitches 
Used Qu. 2 

Pitches 
Used  

 
Qu.3 

Pitches 
Used 

Apr-20 0 Jul-20 353 Oct-20 340 

May-20 531 Aug-20 394 Nov-20 2183 

June-20 2032 Sep-20 375 Dec-20 2923 

Page 8



   

 

 1  2x traders have added the extra day to trade on both market days. 
  2 1x trader retired (aged 94), 1x trader returned to full time work, 1x trader 

ceased trading (including closing their town centre shop). 
 

b) Farmers market - No new traders. 
c) Start-Up market – No new start up traders. 
d) Handmade and Craft market (runs March to December) - No new 
    traders. 
e) Charity Pitch - No new Traders.  

 
3         ANNUAL MARKET WORK PLANS 
 
3.1     The 2022/21 Annual Market Plan can be viewed in Appendix A (attached).  
 
3.2 Item 5, two Field officers from NMTF attended the C&E committee on 7/11/2020 

and gave updates about markets in general and informed the committee that 
Leighton Buzzard was doing well and fully supporting its traders. Due to the 2nd 
Lockdown and subsequent increased Tier 4/5 measures, we still await a NMTF 
representative to come and talk to the traders about the Liaison Officers role. 

 
3.3 The draft 2021/22 Annual Market Plan can be viewed at Appendix B 

(attached). It is split into 3 sections to denote new actions, those carried over 
from this current year and core annual activity that will always appear on the 
plan.  

 
3.4 As per the annual work plans, officers have scoped out the process for 

undertaking a consultation with Farmers Market traders on how to improve and 
expand this speciality market. Officers have also drafted the approach to 
undertake a survey to explore views on amending the opening hours of the 
regular Charter Market which was explored as part of the 12-month annual 
review received by Committee in November 2020.   

 
4.       GENERAL UPDATES 
 
4.1     The market continues to follow the 2m distancing rules and the Market Manager 

makes random checks that traders are following their own Covid-19 risk 
assessments. All traders signed Covid risk assessments before being allowed 
to trade. 

 
4.2     The barriers introduced into the High Street by Central Bedfordshire Council at 

both ends are fully operational. To date, the number of vehicles entering the 
High Street on market days is very low with essential users only. The barrier is 
kept closed during market trading hours. 

 
4.3     Casual trader pitches were fully utilised up to Christmas with all being booked 

in advance on a first come basis. 
 
4.4 Volunteers were used during the busy Christmas period with the busiest times 

between 9am – 1pm. There is always a volunteer for the afternoon take down 
of market equipment on Saturdays. 

 

Page 9



   

 

4.5  The Cashless payment system has been successfully introduced to market.  
 
4.6  In January 2021, the market team took over responsibility for the tricycling 

(recycling) box for crisp packets that was originally placed in the Council office 
foyer.  This is in keeping with the market’s response to delivering the Council’s 
Environmental Aims. It is regularly located next to the pet food trader stall. The 
box is light weight and made of cardboard so wind and wet weather can make 
location difficult. On very wet and windy days, the box is not put out. This has 
been communicated via social media. Officers are seeking ways to resolve the 
issue.   
 

4.7 Officers are putting plans in place to use the existing Markets notice board 

located at Market House, for evergreen information. We will use this space for 

a large poster promoting environmental messages to customers, which will 

include a QR code directing to a webpage on leightonbuzzardmarket.co.uk with 

information about our environmental ambitions and links to useful resources. 

Further to this, we plan to provide infographics about the waste that we process. 

This will ensure a consistent message, and one that is always visible.  

 
4.8 Since the new waste management contract came into play, the market has been 

separating food waste from cardboard and general waste. Subsequent to the 
introduction of the above, a discussion recently took place at the Grounds and 
Environmental Committee, Ref: 97/GE, which oversees the Council’s waste 
management contract, about promotion of waste recycling figures and 
introducing more recycling boxes on the market. Whilst the formal 
recommendation will be received by Cultural and Economic Services 
Committee (CE), Officers have included discussion within the agenda to enable 
Committee to understand the request and offer comments for CE’s 
consideration:   

                  RECOMMENDED to the Cultural and Economic Services Committee: 
                  (i)   to receive specific information on waste collected from the market  

and to look at ways in which to promote these figures. 
                  (ii) to look at ways to maximise the opportunities for the market to 

embed and promote recycling at the market.  
 
 
 
5.       DIGITAL PLATFORMS  
 
5.1  Social Media 

 
Facebook, Instagram & Twitter Post Reach October – 
December 2020, Q.3. 
 
The graph to the left shows the total post reach                          
for Twitter, Facebook & Instagram for each month in  
 
 
 
 

Page 10



   

 

Facebook, Instagram & Twitter likes/follows January-December 2020 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Accounts were reached via content across the three social media 
platforms during Q3.  

 
Please note: these are not unique users (IP addresses), they are 
‘pairs of eyes’ which could be one person three times for example. 

 
Social media platforms total likes/follows October – December 2020 

 
There has been a gradual increase of followers/likes 
each month across Leighton Buzzard Market social 
media platforms. This graph demonstrates the overall 
figure for Facebook, Instagram & Twitter with a current 
total of 3496. 
 
Please note: Instagram figures are rounded up to the 
nearest 500 by default. Although followers have 
increased each month, each month has been rounded 
up to 1500. 

 
5.2      Google My Business. 
           Leighton Buzzard has a 4.1-star rating (out of 5) on Google My Business with 

a total of 203 reviews. 
 
 

50,125 

The graph to the right shows 

the incremental increase of 

likes/follows for Facebook, 

Instagram & Twitter for January 

– December 2020 

The year started on 2381 and 

finished on 3496, this is an 

increase of 47%. 

N
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

lik
e
s
/f
o

llo
w

e
rs

 i
n

 1
0
0

0
 d

e
n

o
m

in
a

ti
o

n
s

 

January – February 2020 

Page 11



   

 

6         MARKET PROMOTION (PRINTED)   
 
6.1    Continued local promotion is undertaken via the Town Council’s About Town 

newsletter. Officers are currently planning for 2021. The market appeared in 
several BBC and ITV features (albeit in backdrops). The market also featured 
in the 2020 Small Business Saturday campaign. 

 
6.2 Until January this year, market social media was a commissioned activity 

provided by an external contractor. That service is no longer in place having 
received notice of the contractor’s withdrawal of service. The activity is now 
undertaken by the market team at a reduced level.     

 
7.        FUTURE VISITING MARKETS    
 
7.1 Street Food Heroes (SFH), a collection of assorted food vendors, have 

provisionally been booked for the third year running from March and continuing 
through to September. Officers are exploring an option of SFH, attending twice 
a month. Once on a Friday evening and once on a Sunday.  

 
7.2      Vegan Markets UK (a market of sustainable and ethically sourced goods and      

lifestyle) have been provisionally booked for April and September. Following 
their first visit to the Town in 2020, Officers will liaise closely with the 
organisation on agreeing the layout and number of stalls allowed to ensure a 
Covid- Safe market.  

 
7.3      France at Home (travelling French Market) are again booked for April subject 

to relevant EU/UK regulations. 
 
7.4     All the above events are subject to Covid regulations in place at the time the 

event takes place and may be subject to change or cancellation. 
 
7.5 The draft programme combing all dates for themed and visiting markets can be 

views at Appendix C (attached).   
 
8.  CONCLUSIONS 
 
8.1 The market operation continues to navigate its way through the Covid situation.   
 
 
END. 

Page 12



Market Sub Committee   25 February 2021    Agenda item:  
      Appendix A 

Market Annual Work Plan  - remains ‘active’ and open to changes 
 

Task 

Target date Committee  

Update – DRAFT  

Delivery 

status 

1 Market Environmental Ambitions 
Deliver campaign that to encourage 
less reliance on ‘once only’ uses for 
plastic bags and receptacles by traders 
and consumers alike. 

ongoing Operational Ref. 15/MK, 29/08/19, Market Environmental 
Ambitions. 
Ongoing from 2019/20 
January 2021- A crisp packet recycling box is 
now made available on market days.  

 
 

G 

2 Farmers market 
Farmers market trader numbers have 
remained constant for some time. 
Officers will research similar markets 
and reassess the guidance documents 
and its brand - aiming to improve trader 
numbers. 

Spring 2020 Market Sub, 
C&E, 
P&F 

Liaison with Farmers market when work 
progresses – TBC. 
Final draft to go to C&E Committee with  
recommendation for P&F for endorsement – if 
the need for alterations are identified.  
COVID-19 circumstance has come into play 
which has temporarily delayed progressing work 
further as the focus is on ensuring existing 
traders can trade.  

 
 
 

A 

3 Market Rules and Regulations, 
Trader Licence - annual review  
To review and update according to 
industry changes/standards as 
identified and to reflect the updating of 
Council policies and procedures. 

Spring  2020 Market Sub, 
C&E, 
P&F 

Transferred to 2020/21 work plan. 
Collating information from across the industry. 
Final draft to go to C&E Committee with  
recommendation for P&F for endorsement – if 
the need for alterations are identified.  
 

 
 

A 

4 Great British Market Awards 
This is an annual award led by the 
National Association of British Market 
Authorities (NABMA). Officers will 
research the award categories and 
assess the criteria in readiness to enter 
the market for an award. 

Autumn – 
submission 
date to be 
announced 

Operational Transferred to 2020/21 work plan. 
The Award scheme was suspended for 2020 by 
the National Association of British Market 
Authorities (NABMA), a replaced by a general 
campaign about Markets being at the heart of 
the community/towns which the Market Team 
engaged in.  

 
 
 

G 

P
age 13



Market Sub Committee   25 February 2021    Agenda item:  
      Appendix A 

Market Annual Work Plan  - remains ‘active’ and open to changes 
5 Engagement with traders / format for 

Committee trader representation 
Review the current activity giving 
structure to representation and in doing 
so seek advice from the National 
Market Traders Federation (NMTF). 

Spring 2020 Market Sub, 
C&E,  
P&F 

NMTF have a revised scheme for supporting 
trader representations.  
Ref: 22/MK – 21/11/19 – resolved to endorse 
Leighton Buzzard market traders, have Liaison 
Officers formally recognised and affiliated to the 
National Market Trader Federation to facilitate 
trader representation at Committee meetings. 
Ref: 68/CE – 07/12/20 – NMTF representatives 
attended C&E Committee. 

 
 

A 

6 Review of current pitch sizes and 
pricing - Ongoing monitoring and 
review as necessary. 

Autumn 
2020 

Market Sub, 
C&E, 
P&F 

Recommendations to P&F for endorsement if 
applicaple. 
Ref: 44/MK – 05/11/20 – Incorporated in Market 
12 Month Review  

 
G 

7 Annual monitoring review  
As per relaunch anniversary date.  
 

Autumn 2020 Market Sub, 
C&E, 
P&F 

Inc. point No.6 above - Review of current pitch 
sizes and pricing. Ongoing monitoring and 
review as necessary. 
Ref: 44/MK – 05/11/20 – Market 12 Month 
Review 

 
 

G 

 

P
age 14



Market Sub Committee   25 February 2021    Agenda item:  
      Appendix B 

2021-22 - Market Annual Work Plan  - remains ‘active’ and open to changes 
 Task Target date Committee  Update Delivery 

status 

1. Covid recovery 
Dependent upon Government 
Guidelines & influence 
pedestrianisation of High Street. 

TBC / ongoing Market Sub As per national circumstances and local 
principal authority activity in the High Street.  
Ref: 44/MK (a), 05/11/20 -  Committee resolved 
to recommend to Council continue using the 
road space for the market and the permanent 
removal of buses on market days. 

 

2. Review open times. 
 

Spring 2021 / 
TBC 

Market Sub Ref: 44/MK,(b), 05/11/20 - to consider 
undertaking a review of market opening hours. 

 

 CARRIED FORWARD      

3. Farmers market 
Farmers market trader numbers have 
remained constant for some time. 
Review guidance documents, 
name/branding - aiming to increase 
trader numbers. 

TBC Market Sub, 
C&E, 
P&F 

Carry over from 2020/21 - COVID-19 
circumstance has come into play which delayed 
progressing work as the focus was on ensuring 
existing traders can trade.  

 
 

A 

4. Market Rules and Regulations, 
Trader Licence - annual review  
To review and update according to 
industry changes/standards as 
identified and to reflect the updating of 
Council policies and procedures. 

TBC Market Sub, 
C&E, 
P&F 

Transferred to 2020/21 work plan. 
Collating information from across the industry. 
Final draft to go to C&E Committee with  
recommendation for P&F for endorsement – if 
the need for alterations are identified.  
 

 
 

A 

5. Engagement with traders / format for 
Committee trader representation 
Review the current activity giving 
structure to representation and in doing 
so seek advice from the National 
Market Traders Federation (NMTF). 

TBC Market Sub, 
C&E,  
P&F 

Carried forward from 2020/21, 
Ref: 22/MK – 21/11/19 – resolved to endorse 
Leighton Buzzard market traders, have Liaison 
Officers formally recognised and affiliated to the 
National Market Trader Federation to facilitate 
trader representation at Committee meetings. 
Ref: 68/CE – 07/12/20 – NMTF representatives 
attended C&E Committee. 

 
 

A 

 ANNUAL ACTIVITY     

6. Environmental Aims Ongoing Market Sub Autumn 2020 introduced Tricycle (recycling) box 
for crisp packets. 

Ongoing 

P
age 15



Market Sub Committee   25 February 2021    Agenda item:  
      Appendix B 

2021-22 - Market Annual Work Plan  - remains ‘active’ and open to changes 
7. Review of current pitch sizes and 

pricing - Ongoing monitoring and 
review, as necessary. 

Autumn 
2021 

Market Sub, 
C&E, 
P&F 

Ref: 44/MK – 05/11/20 – Incorporated in Market 
12 Month Review  

 

8. Annual monitoring review  
As per relaunch anniversary date.  
 

Autumn 2021 Market Sub, 
C&E, 
P&F 

Ref: 44/MK – 05/11/20 – Market 12 Month 
Review 

 

 

P
age 16



Market Sub Committee  25 February 2021 Agenda item:  
Appendix C 

 

Themed and Visiting Market Days 2021/2022  
(subject to change) 

 

 

Date Themed Markets 2021/2022 Delivery Status 

16 – 30 May Love Your Local Market Fortnight 
(virtual delivery) 

 

3 July  Independents Day 
(In collaboration with LB First) 

 

3 August National Children’s Playday  

26 October Halloween activity  

4 December Small Business Saturday  

Date Visiting Markets 2021/2022 Delivery Status 

30 April,  28 May,   
26 June,  30 July,   
27 August,  24 September, 

Street Food Heroes 
(Usually attend on a Friday eve)  

 

18 April,  12 September Vegan Market  

9 April  France at Home Market  

Held 3rd Thurs of every 
month 

Thursday eXtra Market Delivery Status 

Qu. 1 - Apr, May, Jun Casual, Farmers, Crafters  

Qu. 2 - Jul, Aug, Sep Casual, Farmers, Crafters  

Qu. 3 - Oct, Nov, Dec Casual, Farmers, Crafters  

Qu. 4 - Jan, Feb, Mar Casual, Farmers, Crafters  

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



MARKET SUB COMMITTEE  25 FEBRUARY 2021                          ITEM 6 
  

 
Motion from Cllr Harvey to Market Sub Committee. 
 
Background. 
Many  residents  rely on the market for their regular  food shopping as well as other shopping. 
It is important for the  ongoing economic health of the market that  residents feel that they can rely 
on  the market being open for their regular  food shopping  as then  residents will continue to use it 
regularly. If they feel they cannot rely on it then  they will start looking  for more reliable sources of 
shopping and there is a risk of losing customers for the market.  The Adverse Weather  policy 
recognises this principle. However  at present as there is  confusion over responsibility  for  gritting 
of the pavements or   High Street  in times of frost and snow, it  is difficult to keep the market open 
and  customers will suffer from the risk  
 
 Motion  
Therefore Leighton Linslade Town  Council should take  legal advice as regards their duties  and 
liabilities  with regard to  gritting the High Street  both roads and pavements and  Town centre 
pavements   in relation to both the market and every day activity in the town centre. 
Leighton Linslade  Town  Council should actively engage with Central Bedfordshire Council both 
Highways and waste Teams  to  find a  partnership approach to the Town centre in times of deep 
frost and snow that would involve local volunteers and community members.  
Leighton Linslade Town Council should consider looking at the  role of the  Town centre Ranger and 
purchasing appropriate equipment  such  as hand gritters etc. 
 

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



 
 
 
 
 
Market Sub Committee      

 
Date:    25 February 2021 
 
Title:   Market Budget Report 
 
Purpose of the Report: To update Committee on market budgets 
 
Contact Officer: Adrian Harrison, Market Manager 

 
Corporate Objective/s  Aim 2: To promote & develop a vibrant town through 

partnership working & initiatives including management of 
the street market, provision of town & community 
promotions, town centre enhancements, tourism & 
practical support for local businesses 

Implications:   

Financial Yes Income and expenditure figures. 

Human Resources   

Operational/Service 
delivery 

  

Procedural/Legal   

Risk/Health and Safety   

 
1. RECOMMENDATION 
 

Should members be minded the recommendation is: 
 
1.1      To note the report. 

 
 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The information provides an understanding of quarterly financial details. All 

figures are taken from the Council’s financial management system and rounded 
up to the nearest pound. The figures presented show all income and 
expenditure received and paid during the months presented.  

 
2.2 The quarterly figures provided reflect a two-year financial period, not a calendar 

two-year period. April being month 1 and concluding with March as month 12.   
 
2.3      Expenditure is clarified as all running costs relating to the market, including 

staffing. It was noted by Committee that a more detailed expenditure report is 
produced as part of the system-generated budget monitoring reports and 
presented to the parent committee - Cultural and Economic Services.  
 

 
 
 

Page 21

Agenda Item 7



  
 

 
3        FINANCIAL INFORMATION COVERING OCTOBER TO DECEMBER 2020/21 
 
3.1     Income, expenditure, and net for October to December 2020/21. 
 

 
 
 

Income 
Summary Oct-19 Oct-20 Nov-19 Nov-20 Dec-19 Dec-20 

Total Income  £ 7,672.00   £   717.00   £ 7,173.00   £ 1,028.00   £ 8,445.00   £ 1,339.00  

Total 
Expenditure -£ 7,631.00  -£ 9,000.00  -£ 7,497.00  -£ 11,382.00  

-
£12,367.00  -£ 9,473.00  

Total  £      41.00  -£ 8,283.00  -£    324.00  -£ 10,354.00  -£ 3,922.00  -£ 8,134.00  

 
Income 

 

All permanent traders receive four days holiday a year per trading day. Any 
further absence is charged and paid for. 

 
 Contracted service invoices are not always received within the budget quarter 

being presented and contribute to the variance in monthly figures. For example, 
rates were paid in full in the first month of the new financial year.  

 
 No expenditure has been incurred this year for managing the road barrier. This 

was budgeted for  
 
        Throughout quarters 1, 2 and 3, no pitch fees were paid by permanent traders. 

Any income generated came from casual and speciality market traders.  
 
 
 
 

-£70,000.00

-£60,000.00

-£50,000.00

-£40,000.00

-£30,000.00

-£20,000.00

-£10,000.00

 £-

 £10,000.00

 £20,000.00

Oct-19 Oct-20 Nov-19 Nov-20 Dec-19 Dec-20 Total 2 yr
period

Market Income, Expenditure and Net Income for Oct  
2020 - Dec 2020 vs. Oct 2019 - Dec 2019

Total Income Total Expenditure Total

Page 22



  
3.2   Income comparison per market day/type October to December 2020/2021. 
 

 
 

e 

       Income 
 
         * The higher Tuesday income for December reflects there were 4 Tuesday trading 

days compared with 3 Saturdays. 
 
      ~There were no Handmade & Craft markets in October and November. This was 

due to the inclement weather policy being invoked in October which coincided with 
the monthly speciality market day, and the 2nd Covid lockdown during November. 

     
“Income from the Thursday extra market is shown in the Speciality market income 
line.  

 
 
 

 £-

 £200.00

 £400.00

 £600.00

 £800.00

 £1,000.00

 £1,200.00

 £1,400.00

 £1,600.00

 £1,800.00

Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Total

Tuesday & Saturday Charter 
Market Income for 

Oct- Dec 2020

Tuesday Saturday

 £-

 £50.00

 £100.00

 £150.00

 £200.00

Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Total

Other Market Income for 
Oct - Dec 2020

Farmers

Speciality (Inc Start-Up)

Handmade & Craft

Commercial

Other

Total 
Market 
Income Oct-19 Oct-20 Nov-19 Nov-20 Dec-19 Dec-20 

Tuesday £ 3,628 £     375.00 £   3,385 £      460.00 £ 3,160 £   788.00 * 

Saturday £ 3,013 £     234.00 £   2,749 £      463.00 £ 4,579 £   432.00 

Farmers 126 .00 £       18.00    144.00 £        90.00 £126.00 £     36.00 

Speciality 
(Inc Start-

Up)  £    365.00   £       75.00   £        15.00   £          -     £          -     £     83.00”  

Handmade 
& Craft  £    240.00   £         -   ~  £      280.00   £             -   ~  £    280.00   £        -    

Commercial  £        -     £       15.00   £      600.00   £        15.00   £    300.00   £        -    

Other  £    300.00   £            -     £              -     £           -     £        -     £        -    

Total  £ 7,672.00   £     717.00   £ 7,173.00   £  1,028.00   £ 8,445.00   £ 1,339.00  

Page 23



  
3.3 The table below shows the actual year to date figures against the predicted current 

annual budget for 2020/21 - up to December 31st, 2020.  
 

 
  
 

(as at 
31/12/20) 

Agreed Annual 
Budget 

 

Annual 
Summary 

Actual 
2018/2019 

Actual 
2019/2020 

Actual 
2020/2021 2020/2021 

Deficit 
2020/2021 

Total 
Income £    82,576 £    81,710 £      5,857 £   87,550 

 
£ 81,693 

Total 
Expenditure -£ 115,726 -£ 115,263 -£   92,984 -£124,635 

 
-£ 31,651 

Total -£   33,150 -£   33,553 -£   87,127 -£   37,085  

 
 
3.4 The table below shows actual year to date figures against the revised predicted 

figures - up to January 15th, 2021. Notably, the predicted income figure has been 
greatly reduced.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.5 Continuing on from Q1 and Q2, no rents were being paid by permanent traders in 

Q3. As per Policy and Finance Committee’s decision, Ref; 182/PF, pitch fees 
continue to be waived for permanent traders during Q4.  

 
   
4. CONCLUSION 
 
4.1 Committee is fully aware that Q3 cannot be fairly compared with previous years 

and does not represent part of a typical year. Council’s revised budget figures at 
para. 3.4, clearly show an understanding of the impact of Covid-19 on predicted 
income. 

 
4.1 Pitch fees continue to be waved throughout for permanent traders for the 

remainder of this financial year.   
 
 
END 

 Revised Target 
Budget 

(15/01/21) 
Actual 

 

Annual Summary 2020/21 2020/21 Deficit 

Total Income £   7,030 £   5,857 £   1,173 

Total Expenditure £124,635 £  92,984 -£ 31,651 

Total -£117,864 £ 87,127  

Page 24



 
 
 
 
 
Market Sub Committee      
 

Date:    25 February 2021 
 

Purpose of the Report: Market rents 
 

Contact Officer: Vivien Cannon, Head of Cultural and 
Economic Services 

 

 

Corporate Objective/s Vibrancy and Vitality of Town And Town Centre - To continue 
to support a vibrant town through partnership working and 
initiatives including management of the street market, support for 
local businesses, town and community promotions and town 
centre enhancements. 

Implications:   

Financial Yes  

Human Resources   

Operational/Service delivery   

Procedural/Legal Yes  

Risk/Health and Safety   
 

1. RECOMMENDATION 
 

Should members be minded, the recommendation is: 
 

1.1 To uphold the decision to waive the payment of market pitch fees by 
permanent market traders until 31 March 2021, (Ref: 182/PF and Ref:  
182/PF), with collection recommencing on Saturday 3 April 2021, and for 
this to be kept under review by appropriate committees during 
February/March 2021, with an extraordinary meeting of the Policy and 
Finance Committee called for late March if deemed necessary. 
 

 

2. INFORMATION 
 
2.1 At its meeting on 22/02/21, the Policy and Finance Committee (PF), considered 

the payment of market pitch fees, Ref:182/PF. After discussion Members 
agreed to continue to waive the payment of market pitch fees by permanent 
traders until 31 March 2021, with payments due to recommence on Saturday, 
3 April 2021. It was agreed that this position could be reviewed by the 
Committee at the Market Sub-Committee on 25 February or by the Cultural and 
Economic Committee on 1 March. If necessary, consideration could be given 
to holding an extraordinary meeting for this purpose later in March.  

 
 
End 

Page 25

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
	5 MARKET GENERAL UPDATE
	Appendix A. Market Annual Work Plan 2020-21
	Appendix B. Draft Market Annual Work Plan 2021-22
	Appendix C. Draft Themed, Speciality & Visiting Markets dates 2021

	6 WINTER GRITTING
	7 BUDGET REPORT
	8 MARKET RENTS

